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Poyston

SM968198                                                                       Rudbaxton

(Oddly, omitted from Historic Houses of Pembrokeshire))

1914  (Kelly’s Directory)    Henry Owen, DCL JP  

1923  (Kelly’s Directory)    Mrs Penn

There is no fully walled kitchen garden at Poyston. There is an enclosed area of at least an acre square. It is grassed over and the owner is gradually planting some yew “avenues”. Various other lines are traceable on the ground but are marked on no map known to him.

There is a high stone wall along the north side with mortar coping and a central formal entrance with pier at each side and a lower pier at each end. This was restored, raised and the entrance made by the present owner. The other boundaries of the garden are Pembrokeshire hedgebanks with some trees.

In the NE quarter of the garden is a free-standing glasshouse with a small brick potting shed close by. Perhaps there was no suitable wall for a lean-to when the glasshouse was erected; no wall or entrance or building is shown on the first edition OS 25” map. The north side of the garden is marked the same as the others.

The glasshouse was supplied by Messenger & Co of Loughborough.

The axis is approximately north-south. It is about 9m x 5m constructed on a single (tongueless) brick wall to about one metre. The timber and glass sides are approx 0.75m to the eaves. From concrete base to ridge is almost four metres. No guttering remains but there are signs that brackets were attached to the woodwork. Two galvanised water tanks stand outside the south end. They contain some lengths of iron downpipe. Some glazing survives with fishtail, convex curved, lower edges.

A vine is alive and well at the east side and under the roof there.

There is a concrete path near each and across both ends and a raised bed between it and the west side. There is no evidence of a heating system.

There are typical Messenger cast iron ridge and eaves brackets to strengthen the structure with tension rods between them. On each side of the entrance door is a lever system to control all the opening windows on that side with the manufacturer’s name cast into the metal. There is a circular bronze escutcheon also with the maker’s name and address.

A ram pump, parts of which survive, provided water from the artificial lakes to the north to supplement the rainwater collected.

  Documents in the file:

Text (not complete)

OS 25” first edition maps (3)

Photographs of entrance gate (2)

Four colour photographs of house and garden (1996)

Text about the house and gardens, including map, by the owner (1996)
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